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September 9, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Office ofStralegic Initiatives (OSl) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Southwestern
Community Services, Inc., (VC #17751 1), Keene, NH, in the amount of $3,221,041.00 for the Fuel Assistance
Program effective October 1, 2020 tiirough September 30, 2021, upon approval of Governor and Executive
Council. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

Office ofStrateoic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance

01-02-02-024010-77050000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY 202J

$3,221,041,00

2) FuiHiei- request authorization to advance Southwestern Community Services, inc. $3 1 1,259.00 from the
above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies (CAA)
in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the
synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal
assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver FAP services. OSl proposes to
continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the OSl FAP Administrator in the implementation of the
progi'am.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified New Hampshire families,
including those wlio are elderly or disabled. Program funds are targeted to low income households with iiigh
energy burdens. The current maximum income level is 60% of the Stale N4edian Income (SMI), which is
$69,686.00 for a family of four. The average FAP benefit during the last program year was $890.00.

The LIHEAP program operates on an October 1, 2020 to September 30, 202! program year, but at this lime
Congress has not finalized appropriations for the Federal fiscal year 2021. Therefore, the contract amouiii for
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each of the Community Action Agencies is based upon OSI's best estimate of anticipated federal funding,
including cariyover funds from the prior program year. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monies are available to be expended. The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAAs to operate the
program between monthly reimbursements from the Slate.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support
this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Jared Chicoine

Director

JC/EPS

Enclosures

G&C 09/23/2020



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information tlial is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1  identification.

i.l SlMc Agency Name
Office of Strategic.tnitiative.s

1.2 State Agency Address
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

1 ;3 Coiitractpr Name
Southwestern Commuriity Services, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address
63 Community Way. PO Box 603, Keene, NH 03431

1.5 Corifractor. Rhone
Number

(603) 352-7152

1.6 Account Nuimbcr

01 -02-02-024010-77650600-
074-500587 02E21A

1.7 Completion Date
September 3.0,2021

l;8 Price Limitation

$3,221,041.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for Sta
Eileen Smigipwskii Eue| Assists

e Agency
nee Program Administrator

1.16 State -Agency Telephone Number
(6b3), 271-2 id's

1.11 CohtractprSignatiire

Date: 1/9/2^
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory-
John Manning, CEO

|.I3 StMc Agency^tgnaturc
1.14. Name.and Title 6f-Stalc Agency Signatory

-Zkrel CUiColKt, D.-^ec.+o(^

1  Approval by thc N.H.-Depailmcnt of Administration, Division of Persqhitel (ij applicable)
gy. Director, On:

1  16 Approval by the Attom^General (Form, Subst^cc and Execution) (ifap^icahle)

I .I'V "TCpproval by the Gpycmor and Executive Council (ifapplicable).

G&C Itemnumber: G-&C Meeting Dale:
, , ^ ——
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFOUMED. Tlie Stale of New
Hampshire, acting through the ageiicy identified in block 1.1
("5'tate"), engages cohiractpr identified in block 1.3
(•-Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, ,identified and more particularly
described, in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE.DAT.E/GOMPLETION OF SERViCES.
3.1 Nblwithstandihg any provision of Ibis Agreement to the
contrary, and subject ,lp the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreemen t; and all obligations of the part ies hereundcr. shall
become effective 'on the date the. Governor and Executive
Council approve^ this Agreement as indicated in block, 1.17,
uiiJcss no iuchapproval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall bccbiitc efTcctive on Uie dale Uie Agrccmchi is sigticd by
tlic State Agericy as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective. Date ).
3.2 If the Gontractpr commences the Services prior to ilic
Effective'Date, afl Services-performed by the Contractor prior to
th'e EfTective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contrtctori and jn Uic event that this Agreement does not become
effective, .the 'State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
includihg Nvithdut limitation, any obliga|ion to pay the
eoiitractpr tor any costs incurred or Services performed,
^qntfactpr must complete, alLSefvices by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. NATURE OF AGREEMENT.,
Notwithstanding' any provision of -this Agreement to the
-contrary, all. obligations of the State hereunder, mcluduig,
without iimita'tion; the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon thoavailability, and continued appropriation of-
funds afTected by any. state of federal legislative or executive
action that' reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
aDPropriation or availability of fuhding for this Agreement and
the S'copcTortScrvices provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part In no, event shall :ihe State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated fonds. Inthe
event of a-reduction or tcrminalipn of appropriated funds, the
Slate shalkhavc the fight to withhold payment until such funds
become.-availablcj if cvcr. and.shaH have Uie right to reduce or
terminate the Services under tliis Agreement immediately upon
aiying thcrContractpr notice of such reduction or termmat.ion.
The Suilc sh'hirnot be.'requircd to Iransfcr funds .from any bUicr
accoiiht or source to: the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
cvchtjunds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRIGEiTRlCE LFMITATION/
payment.

5.1 The contract price, method ofpaymcni, and terms ol payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
winch is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Tiic^ payment by the Siaie of die contract price shall be the
only and the complcfe reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses. of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and ilie complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. Ilie.State shall
have no liability iq. tlic Contractor other than the contract price.
5 3 The State reserves the right to offset, from any amounts
othcnyisc payable to the Contractor under ihis Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or peniiittcd by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7^ or any other provision "of law,
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in tills Agreement to the
cpril'fary, and notwithstanding unexpected cifcunistances, in no
evc_nt shali-the total of all payments authofizcd, or actually made
hereynder,- exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMRUOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the pcrfqrmahcc of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all, applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal
aulhgrities which -impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, ciyil rights'and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part.by monies ofthe United States, the Contractorshall cornply w,ith:all.fcderal executive orders. rules, regulations.
and statutes, and with any.rulcs, regulations and guidelines as;lhe
State or the United States, iss.uc to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also cprhply with all applicable intcilectua!
property laws. .
62 During the tcrrh:of this Agreement, the Contractor. shaH not
discriminate against eniployees or applicants for cmplpymenj
because of race, color, religion , creed, age; sex, handicap, sexual
oricniaii6h.,pr nalio'ha! origin and will take affirmative action io
prevent such.discrimihation.
6 3 Th'e Cphlfadbr agrees to permit the State of United States
acceS to ̂ y prtHe^Cpntractor's books, records and account? for
the purpQsc ofascertaining compliance with all lilies, rcguldipps
and ordjers, and the covenants, .terms and conditions of this
Agfe'em'etit:.

7. PERSONNEL, ,
7 1 The Gontractor shall ai.its ow-n expense provide all personnel
necessW to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all •pefsonhel engaged in the Services shall, be qualified to
peffofm"the Services, and shall b.e properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do'so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless;ollieru'ise_aulliori7,ed in writing, during the term of

• this Agrccmenti and-for a period of six (6) month.s af^er.lhe
Completion Datciln.block 1.7, the Contractor shall nol.hire. and
shall, not permit, any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a- combined effort to
perform-the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official; who. is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. Tliis
provision shall survivc.tcnhjnatipn of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his of her
successor, shall bc.thc State's representative. In.ihe eveht of any
dispute conccfri.ing the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for Ihc State.

Page 2 of4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acis.ororhissions of tlic
Contractor shall constitute an event of.default hercunder ("Event
of Default"!);
8.1.1 failure; to perform die Sciriccs satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.-2 failure to submit ahy.rcport required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perforin'^'y other wvenant, term or condition of.
this Agreement'.
8.2 Upon thc.occurrerice of any Eyent'of Default, the State may
lake any onc. or .more, or all, of the followihg actions:
8.2;1 give the Contractor,a written hd.lice specifying the Event of
Default and.rcquiringit to,bc remedied wi^in, in the absence of
a greater or lesser spccificalioh.of t iipc, thirty (30) days from .the
dale ofihc notice; and if.the'Event of Default-is.not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement,,effective,twp'(2) days after giving the
Contraciornoticc of tefmihation;-
8.2.2;give the Contractor a written^nptice specifying the Event of
Default and .suspending alj payments to be made under- this
Agreement and ordering ]^at the pprtion of the contract price
which would olherw'ise accrue to the .Contractor during the
period from, the date of sucH nPticc until such time as the Slate
determines liiat ihC'Cpntracfpr has: cured-the Event, of Default,
shall never be paid to. the Contractor;^
8.2:3 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Eycnt.of
Default an'd set off'against any other obligations the State may
owe to thc,Gont^ctpr any damages the State,suffers by reason of
anyEveht.;of Default; and/or
,8.2';4 giyc Uk CdnbTactor a'written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the /Agreement as breached, tefinihate tlie
Agreement and pufsue.any^of its remedies at.law of in .equity, or •
holh.

8.3. No failure by theLStale to enforce anyprovisions hereof after
any Ev.cht of Default shall be.deemcd a waiver of its, fights wi.th
regard, to that Event'of Default, or any subsequent Eyent of
Default: No'express failure.to CDforce any Event of pefault shall
be dcqmcd a waivWofthe fight of the State to'enfprce each and
all of the provisions.herc6f;upori'any further or other Event of
pcfaul t'On ihc part of the Confractor.

9. TERMINATION.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph '8; the. State rnay, at its sole
discretion,.tcrminatcrthc Agfeement for any ,reaspn..in whole or
in p^j -by lhirty (3"0) daySi Writtch.no.tice to the Contractor that
the State'is cxercising:its pptiph.tp terminate the.Agreement.
9.2 In the event of ah early teirninaiion of^ this A'^ecment for
any reason other than, the: .completion of the Services, the
Contractor -shall, at the State's discretipn, deliver to the
Coniracting Ofriccr,.'noi laler,than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a fepprt ("ferrhination Report") describing in
detail all Services pcrformcdi ,arid the confract; price earned, to
and,includingithe date, of fennination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of tlie Termination Report shall
be identical to tliosc of any Final Jlepoftdescribed in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In.additipn.'al^'c State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within |5 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under, the
Agreement

10. DATA/ACCESSyCONFJpENTIAtlTV/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As,used in this Agreement, the word-'"data'' shall mean all
uiformatioh and ̂ ings developed or obtained during the
pcriofinance.ofi' or. acquiredorde.veloped by reaspn pt this
Agreement; including; but not limited lb, all studi^, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, soiihd recordings, video
recordings; pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
represe'ntatioiis, cpmpuier programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, ,merhbfanda,'papcrs, and: documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data .and any property which has been received fVpni
the State or purchased with fimds'provided for that purpose
under this Agreement; sliall.bc the prop.erty of the State, and
shall be returned to ihc State upon demand or upbn termination
of this Agrccment for any-rcason:.
ip.S-ebnfidentiaiity ofdata shall be^goyerned by N.H. RSA
chapter-9 l -A or other cxisting.law. Disclosure of data requires
prior witten ̂ proval of the State.

11. Cpl^l^CrOll'S RELATION .TO THE STATE. In the
perfbnnance.of this.-Agrccment the.C.dnfractor is in all.respects

■an ind'ependeot contractor; and Is!
employee-of the State. .Neither the. Contractor nor any of its
officers;:cmp]oyccs, agentsjof members shall have-authority to
bind the State or-reccive any benefit, workers' compensation of
other emoluments.provided by the Statc.to its.cmployees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall, not'^sigh, or otherwise transfer anyintercst,in this:Agreement \yithput.thc prior written notice, which
shall be provided to.the State at l.east-fifteenp S) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent ofthe Stale; .For purposes
of this para^ph, a. Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control"- means (a) .merge'-,
consblidatibh, pf;a transaction or series of-rclatcd transactions in.
which .:a.:third party, .together with -its affiliates, .becomes the
direct of ihdirectrO\yner of fil^ percent (5,0%) or, more of the
votings shares or similW equity interests,^ or cbrhbined voting
power of the Cbntfa.ctor, or (b)-the saleiof all of substantially all
of the assets of the Contractbr.
12.2 Nbiie of the Services shall be .subcontracted by the
Contractor'without prior wrettcn"notice and consent of tlie>State.
The State is entitled to copics.of all subcpntfa.cts and assignment
agreements and shall npf be bound by- any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment a^ejncm to which it is not a
party.

13. iNPEMNlFICATION. Unless othervvisc.exempted by law,
die Contractor shall indemnify and hold hafmless'the State, its
pacers and employees,, from and'apinst, any and all claims,
.liabilities and costs for any personal injiiir or propcrty.damages,-
patent or copyrighlrinfringemeht, qr'other claims asserted against
ihe.State, its officers or employees; which arise out of (or which
maybe claimed to arise but of) the acts or omission of the
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Contraclor, or subconlractoh, including but not limited to. the
negligencci.rccklcss or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be!liabie for any'costs incurred by-tlie Cqritriactor. arising under
this paragraph 13'. Notwilhsiahd.ing the foregoing, nothing herein,
contained shall be deemed to.constitutc a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of lhe 'Statc, which immunity is. hereby reserved to. the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive, the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSUKANCE. . . • ^
14 1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any.
subcontractor, or assignee .to obtain ,and maintain in force, the
following insurance: „
14;l .l commercial generalJ,iability1nsurance agains.t..ali claims
of bodily injury, death dr^property'damagc,. in,amounts of not
less than $1,000,000. per dccuifphce $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and .
14.1.2 special cause of.loss cpverage.form covering all prqperty
subject to subp'ara'graph, 10.2 .herein, in an.amount hot less than
80% oflhe wholercplaccrneni vhiue of the property.,

'14.2 The policics.dcscril^d.in subparagraph"14.1 :he'rein shall be
on policy forms-'ahd ehdorsemcnts.-appro.vedTor ,use ih ihe State
of. New Hampshire ̂ y ̂ t N:H. Department of Insurance, and
issucd .by irisurerejicense^-in the State of New Hampshirc.
14.3 The Contractor shalj, himish to the Contr^clihg* pfTicer
identified in block 1 .S>, or hjs or her successor, a'certificate(s) of
insurance for .all insurance required underj this Agreement:
Contractor sKall also f^ish to the Contracting.Officer Identified
in b'lock 1.9, or his or her .successor; certificatefs) of insurance
for airrcncwai("s)^bf,insurance required .uhder'this; Agreement no
later- than ten (10) days prior to the ;exp,iratiph date of each
insurance policy. The ceitificatc(s) of insurance and anyrcncwa)s:thereoy shall be;attochc.d:and,are'.incprppratcd:h by
reference.

IS. WQRKEl^' PpMRENSATlON.
15.1 By sighing this agrecmenti.the Cbhtractor agrees, certifies
and warfahts thai-the Conhactoris in cbiripji^ce with or exempt
from, the rcquh^ments.ofN.H! RS.A chapter-281-A Workers'
Compensatjori":),. , . .
15 2 'To ihe cxtent the Cbhtractohis subjecf to thc requirements
of N H. l^SA chapter 281 tA, ebntractor shall maintain,, and
require any-subcontractor or, assignpc to secure: and maintain,
payment of Workers; Gompchsatipn in connection, with
activities which.the persQri proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The.Cdntractor, shall fiirnish'the Contracting Officer
idcnoficd in block-l .9,,or Hls.orhej.successor. probf Of Workers'
Compensation in- the: mahner-described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A-and any applicable rehcwal(s) thereof,; which shall be
attached and- are iricdrppratcd herein by reference; The Slate
shall not. be rcspbhsiijte for payment of- any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any. other claim or bcriefit for
Contractor, or any subcohfractor or employee of Conu-dcior,
which, .might .arise under applicable State of 'New Hampshire
Workers' Cpmp.ensation laws in cohhecfion with the
performance of thc Scrviccs under .this. Agreement.

16. NOTICE..Any notice' by'a party hcreio to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly lelivercd or given atth.c lime
of mailing by, certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed, to the parlies at the. addresses given m
blocks li2 and 1.4, herein.

17. amendment. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged, only by an instrument in wfitihg si^ed by the
parties hereto m6 only after approval of such .amendment,
waiver or discharge by the "Gbvernor.and:Execiiuvc,Council-of
the State ofNew Hampshire unless no such apprbval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE'OF.M-W AND PORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted .and, construed ;in..accordancc with-the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to.the benefit of the parties and'their respective successors
and assigns.. The wording used in-this Agreement is the-wbrdipg
chosen by the parties to cxprcss their mutual intent, and no rule
of construciibn shall bc applied against or in.favbr of .any party
Any actions arising out of this Agrecmcrit-sbal) be'brou^t .and
maintained in New H^pshirc Superior Court which Shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFIJGTING terms; In. the; event of a confiict.
between the temis o/.:.lhis P-37 form (as mt^ified in-EXHTBIT
A) and/or attachnicnt^ahd amendment thereof, the terms ofthe
p:37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

,20. THIRD PARTIES. The paitics hereto dp not intend to
benefit, any third parties and this A^'eemcnt; Shall not be
construed to confer any such'benefit.

21. HEApTNGS. The headihgs-thrpughoul the Agrccmenr are
for reference, purposes only, ;ahd. thc-'wprds contained therein
shall in no way be held to cxpVaihi modify, amplily or aid in the
ihtciprelatiori,.construction or meting ofthe provisions of .this
A^emcnt.

22 SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
,provisions:setforth in,the:attacHed EX™^ A are.incorpbrated
.herein by rercrencc.

23. SEVERABILITY. In'the event any.ofthc provisions.pf this
Agrecmcin.arc.hcld by o^dourt of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state .or federal law.-theremaihing pfovisions of
this Agreement willfcrnaih in full force and effect.

24. ENimE.AGREEMENT. TluS'Agrccmcnt, which maybe
executed in a.number orcountcrparts, each of which shall be:
deemed ah original; constitutes, the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and sui^rsedes all .prior
agreements and iindertitandings with respect to thc.subjecl matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagi-aph. 1.16 of the.General Provisions, shall not apply, to Uiis agreement,

2 On or t)cfore the date set forth- in Block 1.7 of the' General Provisions, the "GOnlractor shall,
deliver\o the-State ah independent audit of the-Gontractor's.entire agency by a quaimed
independent auditor in good standing wilJi the state arid federal government;

3 This audit shall bexdnducted in accordance with the audit requirements of Office,of
' Management and Buaget;(OMB) Circuit 2 GFR 200, Subpaft F-Audit Requirements.

The Fuel Assistance,Program shall be considered a "major program" for purposes of this, audit.

4. This audit report shall.include a schedulexf revenues and expenditures bycoritract of ̂ ant
riumferofail expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. Tlic Gontfactor,shall utilize a
comf^titive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least eyery four years.

5. The audit report shall ihclude a.schedule of prior years' qucstidried costs alpng:wilh an Agency
responseqo thecurferit status of the/prior years' quesUoned costs. Copies ofallGMB l^ers
written as a result ofauditsrshall be forwarded to OSI. The audit shall;b.e;forwarded to OSI
.within one month ofthe time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action.'plan.for-.each
findirig .of questioned cost.

6. Delete;.the,follpyring from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions; "The form, subject rnatter,
cdntent, and nurnber of copies ;b'f the Termination Report shall bendcntical to those of any Final
Report described invExhibit A."

f. The-.epsts charged imdeTtius.Cpntracf shall be determined as allowable under the cost pnncipies
detailed in-a-CER 200, Subp^ E - Cost Principles.

8. Pfopuri.and fmanci.^ records pertaining to;this'contract shall be retained by the Agency^^^ 3
(three) years frorii the date of submission ofthe final expenditure report :[^r-2 GFR,200,333
RetentiomRequirements'for RecWs arid until dl audit findings have been.resolved.

9. In accoraance^with Public: LawU 03-33.3, the "Dep^ents-oftabor, Herilth and Human
Services,'and Educatipri,,ahd:'Rclated Agencies Appropriations Acfof .1995", the.following
provisions are applicable tp'this grant award:

a) Sectiori'5.07: "Purch^e of Aniericari-MadeEquipment ̂ d.Products - It is lhe sense
ofthe Congress, that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equiprrierit arid'_products
purchased with funds made available in tliis Act should be.Arriericanrmade'."

b> Section 508: "■"When issuirig.statcments, press rcleases,;requestS[fonproposals, bid
^solicitations and other documents describing-projects or pfogramS'funded in wholexr in
part with federal riioney..all;statcs receiving;federal funds, includjng but-not limited tO
state and.local governments and recipientsdf federal research grants,..shall xlearly state

SCS UHEAP2I
Exhibits A, B
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(l).the percentage of the totai costs of the program or project which wUl be financed
with federal rhoney, (2) the doll^ amoimfof federal funds for the projector prograni,
and (3) the percentage and dollar amount ofthe total eosts ofthe project or programfhat
will be financed by npn-govemmental sources."

10. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT,. All final,required reports and rei,mburs.emcnt reqiiests shail be,
submitted to the,State within thirty (30):days of.the completion date'(AgreemenVBiock:1.7).

11. ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel-Assistance Program
expehdifures. Advance program.funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance Program vendor
payments. All Fuel Assistarice Program payrnCrits, including Advance program pajfhehts, must
be transferred from the-Cqnunumty ActiOfrAgency's general operating account mto a s^cific
Fuel, Assistance Prograrn account within 48 hours after being received electrohically from the
State. CAAs must subrnit the bank-account number of "the designated barikaccouht..fOr the
advance funds tp'OSI prior to. the elebtroriic submission ofthe funds to the CAA. Unspent.
Advance program fiinds^must rerhain in the FAP dedicated, accouht at;ail'tLmes and cannot be
oomingled with.ahy bfher CAA fun.ds, CAAs are required to submit:a complete electronic copy of
the FAP-dedicated. bank accpuntistatementfo OSI oh a ihonthly basis.

Exhibits A, B &
SCSUHEAP2I o

Contractorlnitis
CFDAII93.S68 - ̂

Page 2 of 4
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor a^ees tb provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low income
incUviduals, ahd.agrees to perform all such sendees and other work; necessao'to operate^theprograrn-in
accordance'wdth the requirements ofthis contract, the principles and objectives set forth.in the Fuel
Assistance Pro^am pro"cedurcs"Manual, Irif6nhalion Memoranda other'guidance, as determined
by OSI.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) ser\dces vyill be defined to include the following categories:

1. Outreach, eligibilityi detehniriation and certification of FAP applic^ts.

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:'
a. Reifnburscmenrfqr goods ̂ d services delivered
b. Lines of credit.

c. Budget plan payrnenls

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters.who pay-their energy costs asmndefined
portions oftheir rent.

4. Payments directly to.clients;orily when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in-the.Fuel
Assistance-Procedures Mahual,.-

5 ■ Emergency Assistance i'n'the form of reimbursements for goods or,services delivered in
:accdrdance with paragraphs 3 and 4 aboVc.

Exhibits A, B &SCSLIHEAP21 Cohthtctorinitiaft^.
CFDM93.S6S ,Datc.55[
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EXHTOlt C

PAYMENJ TERMS

In consideration.bf the satisfictoo' performance^ofthe services as deLermined by the State; the. State
.agrees lo pay over to the Contractor the sum of $3,221,041.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the
"Grant"),.

Upon.Uie State's receipt, of the 2021 Low Income Home Energy Assistancc Program grant from .the US
pepartment of Health and.Human Services, thefoliovvingfunds will, be authorized.

$262.350;00 for;administration costs, of which $32,794.00 wll be.issued as a cash advarice,
$2,784,650.00 for program costs.;.of which $27^8,465.00 will be issued as.acash advance,
$174,041.00 for Assurance 16,

The dates^for this-contract afe Qctdber I, 2020,through September 30, 2021,

Approval to obligate .(Exhibit 1) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing, by the Qffice.of
Strategic Initiatives to the Contractor, as the Federal funds become available: .Drawdowns from the
balarice of ftinds will be made toihe Conliactor^only after written.documentation of cash-need is
submitted.to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be'in acco.rdance with procedures established
bythc^Sfate as detailed in the Fuel-Assistahce:Prd^am Procedures Manual.

CEDA-title:

CFDANo:

.Awd Name:

Federal Agency:

Low Income" Home-Energy Assistance Program

93.568

Low Iricome Hprne :Energy Assistarice Program

Health & Humaii Services.
Administration for Children and .Families

. Office of'Cbmmunity'Services

SOS LlHEAPZl

CFDA#93.568

Exhibits A,.B &

Conimctor Initi

Date

Page 4 of 4



NEW HAMPSHIRE GFriGE OF STRATEGIC INtTIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Sectidri 1.3 ofthe General Provisions agreestoto^^^
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free-Workplace Act of 1.988 (Pub. L, 100-69q,.TiUe V Subtitle. D y. . ,
701 et seq:);, and further.agrees tpLhaye the Contractor-'s represeritative, as identified m Sections 1.11 and 1.12 ot
the-GehefarProvisionSi execute Ihe.following.eertificatipn:.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES QTHER THAN.INDIVtDUALS:

US DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH AND HyWUySf S®
US DEMRTMENT OF EDUCATION- CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-CONTRACTORS
US pEPARTmNT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5,151-5160 of the:Dt;u|-Free:Workplacc
Act of 19'8"8. (Pub L. roO-,690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 701 et seq.). The January 31, 19,89 regulations were
amended^ahd published.as Part ITofthe May.25.T990 Federal Registcr.(pages 21681-21691) and,require
certification by grantees (and, by inferenbe sub-grantees and sub-confractors) prior to award that they will■maintain'a arug-free workplace. Section.301;7,.630(c) 6f,tKercgulatipir.proyides that.a..grantee,(and by inferepce
s-ub-grantees and sub-contractors):tbat :is a state may elect.tp make one certification to tbeDeparpncnt in eachfederalifiscalyeariin lieu of cCrtificales for each grant during,tbe fideral Itscql year covered.by the-cmitotioii.
The certificate sefout below isia mafcriai feprpsentatipn of faot upon'which relian.ce.is p.laced tyben the Agency
awards theigrant. False certification or violation of the certjfi.cation shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
s,usp.ensi.qn,or terminafion,of grants, brigbvemment-widc suspension or debafhiint. eontractprs usi.ng this form
should scnd ifto;

Director,.N.ew Hamp.shire Office ofStrategic; Initiatives^
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson HaU, Concord, NH 03301

(A) 'Tlieigrantee certifies that it'will .brAvill continue to provide: a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying:empIoyees that the unlawfLil manufacture, distribution,dispensing, possessibh.bf'br use ofa controlled substance is pfbhibife'd in'.thergr^teb s

workplace and specifying the actionsihat wili.bb taken against employccs for violation of such
prohibition;

(b) ^Establishing ah ongoing drug-fre_,e aw^cncss:program tb.ihfbnii employees.about
(1,) the dangers of drug abuse in thc workplacc;.
(-2) the grantee's policy bfrhaihtainihg a drugrfree workplace; . . . •
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, ahdbnipl.oyee assistance^programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon einplpyees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace:

(c)^ Making it a requirement that-each employee to be.engaged in the performance,of.the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee ih the. statement required by.paragraph (a) that, as a condition.of
employment under the grant,- the employee will

(i) abide by the terms of the statement; and
P37 E-^ibits D thru H

.UHEAP2i Page 1
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE workplace REQUIREMENTS
alternative I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERG Y

(2) notlfy 'the employer ih writingpf his or her conviction for a violation of a criniihal drug
Statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

(e)

(0

(g)

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after.receiving notice unden
subparagrapb (d)(2) from ah'employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction,
employers of conyictcd'employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer oh whose grant activity the convicted einplpyee.w^ working, unless'the.federal agency
has designated a.central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
id6ntification;nuiT|ber(s);of each affected grant;

Taking one,of the following actions, within 30 calendar d.ays of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2),,with respect.to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an emplbyee;.up to and iricluding'
t'enhihatidn, consistent with/the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
.amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes.by'a federal,.state, or local health, law
enforcement, pr other appropriate agency.

Making a gbod faitli efforl to continue to maintain a drug-free workpiace through implementation
of, paragraphs (a)„(b), (c)/|(d), (e), and (0-

(B); The grantee may insert. in the space, provided: below the site(s) fof.'the.perfprmance of work done in
connection' with the specific grant.

RIacc of Peifomi.ancc (street address, city, cpuniy. state, zip code) (ILst each location)

.Check n.if thefe/^e workplaces'on file tha.t are not identified here.

Southwestern Community $er\'ices, Inc.

Contractor-Name

October 1,, 2020 to September.30, 2021
Perio'd.co.vefed by thisGertifi.cation

John A, Manning, Chief Executive.Officer

Name and Title ofAutlicriizcd Cbhtractbr Representative

lA
Contractor RepresCTla'tive Signature

LIHEAP21

CFDA//93.568

•9/9/2020

Date

P37 Exhibits D thru H

Page 2 of 7
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGTG INITTATTVES

STANDARD EXinBIT E

Tlie 'Cpnlractpr identified in Section 1.3 of the'General Provisions agrees to comply with "the provisions of
Section-3 ]9of Pubjic;Law .l01-12), Governrrieht wide Guidance for New Restrictibris oh.Lpbbyihg;;and 31
U.S;C. 1352, and further agrees to have the-Contractor's representative, as identified.in Sections l .i l and 1.12 of
the General Provisions^ execute'the following Certification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ̂ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMiENT OF AGiUCULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US:DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US department OF energy

Progranis (iridicate.'applicable program covered):
LIHEAP'

Contract Period: October I, 2020 to September-30,'2021 ^

Theundersigned certifies.tp the best-of his or hen knpwledge and belief that:

(T) Np federal appropria.led funds have-been paid or will be paid by or on behalf.pf the:undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting:to influence an officer or. cmplbyee of any agency, a-meniiber of
GpiVgress, an officer or employee pfCongress, or an employee of a-member of Congress in connection
with the:awardihg.o'f any federaj contract, cdntinuation, renewah^arnendmenti or mcdificaljpn of any
.federal.contract,^ant, loanj or cooperative agreement (and by specific,meritioh sub--gfahre.e or siib-
cohtfa'ctor).;

(2) If any;funds other than federal.appropriated funds have been paid.of wiii.be paid.to any pefs'pri for
influencing'prattemp influence ah p.fficer or employee of a.ny agency, a rnember ofCongress, an.
officer or employee of Congress, oran employee of a member o'f.Cohgfess imcbririec^ this"
federal cpritraCt, grant, loan, pr cpoperauye^agreementfand by specific' mention siibrgranfee or subr
contractor), the.'uridersigned shall.cdmpfete and spbmitSlahdiard Form LLL, "DiscjpSure Fprrn,to Report
Lobbying'v.Ui acc^ with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-i.

(3) The undbraigned Phal) require that the language of this certification be included in the. award document
for'subawards atrall tiers (ihcludihg.subc6hlracts, s,ub.-grant^ cprifracts urid.e'r grants, loans, aiid
cooperative agreements);^d that all subrecipienis shall ccrti^' «nd'.disclose accordingly.

Tliis.ceftificfltipri is-.a maferial represehtatioh'bf fact upon which reliance"was. p1aCed \yhen Uiis transaction was
made.OP entered into. Subifiissidn pf this:certification is a.pTereqUisite for making;pr'entering into this transaction
'imp.ps.e.d by S.ectipn 1352^ Title'SI:, U.S.; Code. Any person who fails to file the'requiredjcertificatioh shall be
subject^.^ civil-penalty ofnot-less than $10,000 and not more than,SI00,000 for eacH.such fail.ure.

r4 r . ChiefExecutive" Officer
f y I y ^
jCbntractor/Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

John Av.jClanning 9/9/2020
Contractor N^ie: Date

P37;E.vhibits D ihru M

UHIiAP2l

eFDAy/M.568 2 E 1
Inilials /H/ Date



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STAWARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor^identified in Section 1.3 of the General ,Provisions agrees to cOrnpjy 'with-lhe-pfbvisions of
Executive Office of.the Pfesideiit, Executive/Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment; Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters,.andTurther agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in,
Sections 1. f I and 1.1-2 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARM ENT, SUSPENSlbN, AND OTHER
RESPONSiBILlty matters - PRTMARY covered TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submiuing this,proposal.(cont'ract), the prospective primary participant-is providing the
certiFicatibh set put below.

(2) The inability ofapereon to provide the certification required below will nptjVecessafily result in denial of
participation in this covered tr^saction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation, wjll be considered in
connection with the NH Office of Strategib Initiatives' determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the^prospective primary participant to furnish a cehificatibn or an explanation,shall
disqualify such per^sonTrom participation :in "this transaction.

(3) Thc ccrtificatibn in this.clause.is a.materiaJ representation of fact upon whichTeliance, placed when OSf
determined to enter intpThfstransaciion. Ifit is later determined that theprospective primary participant
knowingly fehdered-ah-eftoheous certification, in addition ip.bihef remedies ayaijable'io lhe federal
government, OSJ may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospectiveprim^ participant shail prbvid.e immediate, written notice to die OSl agency to whom this
prbpbsai (contract) is subniilted ifaf any,tim,e the prospective primary participant leariis that its certification
was erroneous when submitted of hais becomc erfohebulby reason bf.chahged circumstances,

(5) The terms "covered transaction;"^""debarred," "suspended," "ineligible,'""lower tier cbvered.trahsaclibn,"
"participant," T^n^'oh," "pfimaly covered trarisactibri,"'"principal," "proposah" an,d 'Voluntarily excluded,"
as used in thLs.clause; have the meanings-set out in the Definitions, and Cbyefage sections of the rules'
ImplemehtingExecutive Order .'12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See ,the attached definitions;

(6) Tlie prospective pri'mary pafticipant agrees by submitting th'lsproposal (cbntractphat sBbuld the proposed
covered-tfansactlbh be ehtereid into, it shall riot knowingly enter into any lower tier covered.transactibn with
a person who is deb^ed, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded:ffbrii pafticipati6ri'iri,this
covered transaction, unless authorized by OSI.

(.7) The prospective,priniary participant further agrees by submitting.this proposal that it will include the clause"
titled "Ccftificatibri Regafdirig Debarmertt, Susperisipn,,lneligibil.ity and Voluntary.Exclusion f Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by, OSI, without modification, in all.lower,tier covefed trarisactions arid, in
all sblicitatipris for lower tier cbyered transactions.

(8) A participantm a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective: participant in a.lower tier
covered transactio.n that it is.ngtjdebarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded frbrii the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A prulicip.an't may dec.ide the method and
frequency by ,which'it detefmirielthe ,eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but;is not required
tOi check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothihg cbritairied 'injdie fbregoiri shall be construed to require estalblishmentof a-system of records:in order
to render in good faith-the.certification required, by this clause. The. knowjedge and inforrnation of a
participaiit is not required to exceed,that which is normally possessed by,a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
Iransaction knowinglyientefs into a lower tier covered transaction witli a personydio is suspended, debarred,
Ineligiblej or volunfarjly excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to othef remedies
available to the federal govcfnmentj OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

R37 Exhibits .D thru.H
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CERTIFICATION REGAiUUNG DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION^ ANp OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY NlATTERS - PRIMARY COyERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Cer/i/icaiion.Regdrding Dehdrjuenii Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary. Covered Transactions

{1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and bcliefj that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debju;redj suspended, proposed for debarment, declared.ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered tran'saclioris by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not wilhin a three-year period preceding this'proposal (contract) been coriyicted Of or had a
civil judgmerit.rendered against them for cornmi.ssipn of fraud or for axriminaLoffense in
connection witli obialhihg; attempting to obtain, or performing a pliblic (fcdefal, state^or local),
transaction or a c6htract:uhdef a public transaction; violation of Federal.or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement," tliefl, forgery, bribery, falsification or, destruction" of records,
making'fal^e statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherAvise criminally orxivilly charged-by a governmental entity
(federal, state-or'local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated.in paragraph (l)(b) of
this certification;'and

(d) have hot within a three-yeaf peribd preceding .this;applicatipn/proposal hadfpne pr:more public
(federal, state or lp,cal) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective particiiDaiit shall attach an.explanation to this proppsaj (contract).

Certification Regarding Debdrmetit, Suspension, Jneligibiiity and
.yoluntary'Exclusion r Lower Tier Covered TransactionSs

(To Be.^'Suppiiecl tc Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submilting this.lower tier'.pfop6sal.(contract),.the pfospective lower,tier participant; as deflnedin
45 CFR Part'76,certifies to tlie best of its knowledge and'belief tha,i it and its principals:

(a) are hot presently,debarred,rsuspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,_or vdluhtaHly
excluded,from participation in this transactibh by any federal dcpartriVent o7 agehcy.

(b) where the pfospectiye jpwer tier participant is unable to certify to any-ofdie'above, such
prospective participant shall attach an.explanation to.tliis proposal .(contract).

The.p.rospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract).ihatMt.will:ihcludc this
clause entitled "Gertifl'catibn Regarding Debairmcnt, Suspension, Tneligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," witliout modification in all 'lower licrxovefcd transactions and in.afl solicitations for
iowei>tref-covered transactions.

Chief Executive Officer

'Contractor/lepfesd'ntativeiSignatLife Contfactor'.s Representatiye Title

John A. Manning 9/9/2020
Contractor Name Date

.P37 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INltlATTVES -

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH biSABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section ,1,3 of die GenerarProvisions agrees by signature.ofthe Gontractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions, to execute „thfe following
certification;

By signing and submitting tJiis proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonableiefforts'lo
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contracter'Rcprcsahtativc Signature

Chief Executive Officer

Contractor's Representative Title

John A. Marinina 9/9/2020

Contractor Name Date

I.1HEAP2!

CI-DA#93,568
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDA1H> exhibit H

eERTIFiCATiON
Public Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL tOBACCO SMOKE

In.accordance with Part C of,Public Law 103-227, the "PrG-Chlldren Act of 1994'', smoking may not be
permitted in ariy portion of any indoor facility owned or fegulurly used for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library Services to children under the agcof 18, ifthe services are funded by federal programs either
directly or through state or local govemnierils. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans
and loan.guarantees, and contracts. The law doesmot apply to children's services prdvided in private.residehces,
facilities funded solcly'by:Medicare or Medicaid fuiids, arid,portions or facilities used for inpatient drug.or
alcohol treatitient.

The;aboye language must be included, in; subawards that contain provisions for children's services arid that-all
sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordirigly. FailufeTo^corriply with the provisioiis'of this lavy may result- in
tlic imp,osilion of acivil,monetary,penalty of up to $1,000 per day.

Contracjlor Rcprdscntative Signature

Chief Executive OfTiccr

Coritractor's, Representative Title

John A. blanhing 9/9/2020

Contractor Name Date

UHBAP2I

CrDA/f93,5'68
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FAP Approval to Obligate

STATE

EXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Exhibit

First 7Tm'2Q\% Wood and SEAS,Onlv ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED.BUDGET' ,538,220:00 - 5,646,370.00 4,582:60: ;357,200.00 6,546.372.60 |

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSlV OBLIGATED
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

THIS APPROVAUTO OBLIGATE^ . o.oo- : 0.00 • , . 0.00 0.00 1,165,551:00 (

'TOTAL y^VAIlj^BLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHdRiZED TQ OBLIGAtE

0;00

538,220.00
1,165,551.00

4,480,819.00
0.00

4,582.60
0.00

357,200.00
1,'165:551.00
5,380,821:60

BMCA

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS . ASSURANCE16. TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 95;663;00- .1,003;586:00 : . liOOO.OO : 69,960.00 .1,170,209:00^

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

o:oo

0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE. 0.00" T 207,112.00 -  „0.00 - 0.00 207,11200

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TID OBLIGATE

0;00

95,663.00

207,112.00.

796,474.0.0
0.00

1,000,op
0.00

69,960.00

207,112.00

963,097:00

SNHS

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. _ FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET " ^ 163,777:00 - 1,718,152:00 : 1-000.00 .84;220:00- >1,967,149.00

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVldLiSLY obligated o:oo 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

d;oo
THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE; 0.00 - V •354,578.00 . 0.00, 0;00 354,578;00: ,-J

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

.o;oo

163,777.00
'354,578.00
1,363.574.00

0.00

1,0.00.00
0.00

84,220.00

354,578,00
1,612,571.00

scs.

First 7/1/2019 .ADMIN. FAPROGRAM SEAS Assurance 16 TOTAL.

CONTRACTED BUDGET/ ' ' 83,835:00.: TV 679,501.00 , ,  825.00' - -64;960:oo 1,029;i21;00; |

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0:00 :o:oa 0.00 0:00

0.00

0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 ;  181.504.00 i 0.00 0.00 - 181,504.00 ! J

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO pBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZEb to OBLIGATE

0.00

83,635.00

181,504.00
697,997.00

0,00

'825.00

o:oo

64i960.00
181.504.00
847;617:00

CAPSC

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM- SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET >54.676:00. V573,593.00,, - 757:60i 55;110.00 684,136:60. .

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

b.oo, .

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE; OIOO .. ■:118.373100 o:oo,. . - ,  . ,0;00, . 118;373.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00
54,676:00

118.373;00
455,220.00

0.00

757.60
0:00

55;'110.00
118:373.00
565i763.60

TCCA

First,7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS' ASSURANCE i;6 TOTAL

CONTRACTED.BUDGET , ' 140.269.00' 1,471;538:00 , 1,000.00 «  'i82;g50.00 1i695,757.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET
PR^IOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 ■ 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO, OBLIGATE o:oo ' 1303,984.00 : ' .0.00 '0:oo . 303,984.00. •
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOTAUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0,00
140,269.00

303,984.00.
1,167,654.00

0.00

1,000.00
0.00

82,9.50.0,0
303.984,00

1,391,77:3!00

LUn:Aj'21

CFDA#93.568.

Contracior Initial^' .1



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STl^ATEGIC INlTlATiyES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

GERTIFICATiON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING AGGQUNTABILITY
and transparency act (FFATA) eOMPtlANCE

The Federal Funding Accouhtabiliiy and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awa'rdees of
individual federal grants equal to or greater than. $25,000 and awarded on or after October j, 2010,-. to
report on data related to execuuve compensation and associated first-tier sub-grantS'of $25,000 or more.
If theTnitial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications resulfin a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subjecfto the FFATA reporting requirements as.'ofthe date of the award.

ln:a'ccprdance,with 2 CFR Part. 1.70 (Reporting SubawarJ and Exccuiive Compensation Jnformqtioh), the
New.;Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must "report the following information for any subaward or
.cohtractaward subjecfto the FFATA reportingreqiiifemehts:

1,) Narhe of entity
'2) Amoiirit ofraward
3) Fundi.ng-agen.cy
4) ■NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for-grants
5) Program source
(5) Award.title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) iJocatipn of the entity
8) Pri ncipal place of performance
9) Unique;ideiitifierofth.e entity (DUNS#)
10) Total compen^tioh.and namesrof the top five executives if:

a; More than:80% of annual .gross revenues are..fiorii the' Federal government a.nd -those
revenues afe greater than $25M annually, and.

b. Compehsatiori infonnation is not already available throiigh:reporting:to the SEC.

Prime graiif recipients must submit FFATA-fequ'ifed data by the'ehd of tlie month plus 30 days in which
the-award or iawafd amendment is made.

The Contractor identificdiih Section 1..3 of the General .Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding .Accountab,ility*and Transparency Acti Public Law 109-282 and Public Law .110-
252/ and- '2 CFR Part' 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive. Cqmpen.satiqn Information), and
fufthenagrees to haye'the Contractor's representative, as- identified in Sections f..l 1, and 1-.12 of the
General Pfpyisipns, execute the following Certification:

Tlie belONv n^ed Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
H^psliiriD Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicableprovlsions Of the Federal
Finaij^ial Accouhtability and Transparency Act.

CT I. Tr.hn A XXnnnino rhipfFvpr'ntivp Offirfr :
(Gon/actor Represehtativ/signature) (Authorized'Cpntractor Representative Name & Title)
gAnthwPctPm Cr>mmiinlty Tnr -9/9/?n?n ^ rr
(Contractor Name) (Date)

Cohiractoi
Date ^
Page I of!
LIHEAP21 GFDA#93.568



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF SXRATEGTC INtTIAtlVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

Asthe Coniractor identified.in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the.
bCjow listed questions are.tfue and accurate.

L T^e DUNS numter for your entity is: 081 251 381

2. In your.business'dr.organizatioh's precedingcdmpleted fiscal year, did.your businessdr organization
receive '(1):80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal.contracls, subcontracts, loans,
^ants; ,sub-^ahts, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO .YES-

If the answer to #2 above^is NO, stop here.

If.thc ahs^wer to #2 above is YES^ picasc answcr the foliowing:

3. Does thepublic have access to information about'thc compensation of the executives in your business
ororganizatipn.lhrqugh periodic" reporlsfiled under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities,Exchange Act
of 1934 (1,5 U.S.C.7.8m(a), 78g(d)),or sec.tipn.61(}4 dfth'e. Internal ■Reyenue-Gode pf 198^

NO ^YBS

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the. following:

4. Thcjhaities and compensation of the.five most highly compensated officers in.your business or
org^ization are as follovs's:

Nante:' Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name:. ^ Amount:

Name: Amount:,

Name: Amount:

Contractor" Iriiiialsi
Date ^Y=\\2^
Page"! 612
LIHEAP2i.CFDA«93.568



Statie of New Hampshire

Depiaftment of State

CERTIFICATE

-i, Wiltiam.M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN'

COMMUNITY SERVICES, iNC- is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registercd.to transact business .in New

Hampshire on May'19; 1965,. I iprther certify that ail fees'and docurhehts reqiiiredlby the Secretory of State\sdffi(», have bcCT

received and is in good standing as fw'as tliis office is concerned.

Buttiness ID': 65514

Certificate Number^ 0004894084

M
Ba^

TO

<H)

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto; set iriy htoid tmd caytot" to be

the Seal of the'Stnte'OfNewHampshire,

this:'l6th dayor.ApfiliA.D. 2020.

Wililam M. Gardncr

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corpbrate.Au(horit);)

I, Kevin Watterson ; Chairperson of Southwestiem Communitv Services Inc.
(Name) (Coloration,hamc)

(Hereinafter ihe "Corporation"), a New Hampshire. corporation, hereby certify thal-(l,) 1. am the duly
(State)

elected and acting CJerk/Secreiary/Officer of the Corporation; (2) i-maiiitain and have custody and am familiar
with the minute books of the.Corporation; (3.) I am duly authorized to issue certifipates with.rcspcctto the
contents of suclv'books; :(4) that thc Board .of Directors of the Corporation have authofized,-on' .2/l 8/2016 . such
authority to be in force and effccl'uniil September 30. 2021. (Dale)

(Goniract'.tcrmination dale)

■rhe:person(s).holding;the belowlisted positiph(s) are authorized tpexecute and deliver on bch^f of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:.

John A. Manning CEO
(Name) (Posinoii)

(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors w^ held in accordance with NewHampsKire
(Slate of incoTJorai'lon)

law and.thc by-laws ofthe Corporation;'arid (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended-or rescinded
and continues in;full force and.effect as of the daie,hefeof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,.] have hereunto set.my'hand as the Clerlo'Secreta^/Officcr of die corporation, this
_2_ day 20 W ■

STATE.OF ̂ Ncw,Hampshire_
CO.tfNTY OF Cheshire

Nik-
G.l.crk/Secret^/pfficer

On this 8 day'of September , 20 20 j before me, Margaret Freeman:
the undersigned Officer, ̂ rsbnally api^ared Kevin Watterson
her/himsclfto be the Board Chairperson

who acknowledged
of SouUiwcstcrn Commuhilv Scrv'ices In'c \ a coiporation

;and that she/he as such ofTicer being aiitliorized to do sO, executed the foregoing
Instrument for the purposes therein contained.

FN.'WITNESS whereof, I hereunto set my h^id and official seal.

MY
COMMISSION

EXPIRES
DEC. 4, 2022

>.^^omtmSsidn Expiration Date:

%isS^



CERTIFICAIE OF Liability INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOIYYVY)

9/8/2020

THIS CERTinCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY,AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTlhCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATTVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER-THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE'.OF INSUWVNCE DOES NOT CONSTITTJTE A CQNTFVkCT'BETWEEN THE ISSUINGTNSURER(S), AUTHOfTIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRObuCER, AND THE CERtlRCATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: if tho cortificato holder Is an ADDHTONAL INSURED, the policyties} must bo ondorsod. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and condltidhB-of the policy, certain pbllcles may require Ian endorsement. A.statement-on.thls certificate does not conler. rights to the-
cartfficatd holder In llou of such oridorsernbntfs).

PRODUCES

Clark - Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606.'
Keene NH 03431

^ONTACr
NAME:

p'Nn.F.fi; 603-352-2121 rAic. Mdi: 603357-8491
looitfss; C8r24admin@'dark-morten3on.com

INSURERfSI AFFORnNO COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A: PHlladetohia Insurance Comoanv

INSURED SOUTHViCSTERNCOM
Southwestern Cortimunity Services Inc
PC Box 603
Keehe NH 03431

INSURER B; Maine Employer Mutual Insurance'Co.

INSURERc-

INSilRER D;

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE,NUMBER: 1286629394. REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE.8EEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING'ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM'OR'CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VMTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY- PERTAIN.^THE INSURANCE.AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HERBN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES -UMfTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REOUCED.BY PAID,CLAIMS.

MM

JJB. TYPE OF INSURANCE inMiii'.v'>1 POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

I ClAIMS-MfcOE OCCUR

Gem. AGGREGATE LIMfT APPLES PER;

-POLICY □ JE^ HU LOC
OTHER:

PHPK2U7e»

POLICY EPF
fHM/DO/VYYYI

.POUCY EXP
IMMrtWYYYYI Limits

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO REITTED

MED EXP(Any cna person).

PERSONAL « ADV INJURY

GENERAL Aggregate

PRODUCTS • COMPAJP AGO

COMSINEO SINGLE LIMIT
lEapcbdanO

'>■1.000,OOP

1100.000

sisiodb
>1,000,000

>^000.000

<S 2.000,000

automobile uabujty PHPK2147861 6/302020 6QQI2021
1 000000

ANY.AUTO
ALLOVWEO
AUTOS"

•HIRED AUTOS:

BODILY INJURY (Pv.parson)

scheduled
•AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY MJURY (PvaoMwil)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer »ed(MnO

umbrella uab

Excess LIAS

'DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

PHUB727327 EACH OCCURRENCE >2.000,000

AGOREOATE » 2,000.000

RETENTOnS irtnnn
V PER . I OTH.^ STATUTE- ER •WORKERS COMPENSATION. .

AND'EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY y/H
AMYPROPfiierOiWARTNER^ECUTTVE' rTTI
OFFICERAifEMBeREXCLLOeO?- | N |
(MamMory In HH)
K.m, BMOlM under . .
DESCiRIPTION OF.OPERATIONS beKwr

E.L.EACHACCIOENT >500.000;

E.L. DISEASE - EA EUPLOYEE >500.000

E:l. DISEASE T POLICY LIMIT ssoo.ooo

OeSCRtPTION OP qpCRATIONSI LOCA'nON8/yEKiCLES;(ACORD 101, AdORtonal Reraarn ScMuta.may M atuenad If inert apaea Is raqutnid)
WoiKers Compensation laws apply-fof the state of: NH
All Officers are ihduded

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Office of Strategic thiliatives.
Johnson Hall'
107 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-8501

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCiES.BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF; NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 {2014/01)
© 1988-2014 AGORD CORPORATION. A" t'ghts reserved.

The.'ACORD name.and.iogo are registered marks of ACORO
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Directors of ' (■.I■;n■^lt■li■;l>rl)[^l.l(:A(;(:()u^TA^'■^s
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., • \voi.rK»OKu • NOirnicoNBy
Keene, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORSLRERORT

,Re:DoH ondhe Flnanclai^Statemenf^
We have audited "the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31. 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Maha'aemerit's Responsibility fdfi the Financial Statemerits
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this Includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ALfd/fbrs^'ffes;pdriS/b7//fy
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards,'\ssue6 by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1
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To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

CI'KTIf!!;!) fllhi.K; ACCOUNTANTS

WOITKUOKO • NOKTH CONW
)H)vr.». coNcoKn

STK/VimM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on thB. Financial Statements

We "have audited "the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Monaoement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' ResoonsiblUtv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgmeni, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Ooihlon

"In our'opinion. the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In
the United States of America.

Reoori on Summarized C0mr3araitiv6'lnfdrmatJon .
We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative Information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, is
consistent, In all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming .an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Adrhlnlstrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such Information
Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information Is fairly stated, In all
material respects, In relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

iOther Reportfna Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestem Community Services, Inc.-s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report Is to describe the scope of our testing of Intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on Intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestem Community
Services, inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 5. 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SQtJTHWgSTERN COMMUNITY SERNAGgS: INC. ANP'RELATED CbMPANIIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY.Sj.- 2019 AND.2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes recelveble

Interest receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land end buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depredation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment In related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow end reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS:

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current llabllibee

Refundable advances

Interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restricliona

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total llablllllos and net assets

882.1B7
1,245,826

51.722
112,000
45.547

2.337.282

19.188.791
554.976

220.291

19,984,058

10,428.080

4,922.671
182.916.

5.105.587

1,086,895

1,059,922

35,019
112,000
45.547

2.339.3B3

14,438,178
549,305

mxL
15;027.100

4.680.952

10.146i148

198,728 88,706
59,102 188,523

649,334 517,853
62,996 51,996

384 384

1.170,544 647.462

$ 15.533:667 S' i3;332'!993

$ 391,613 $  124,085
119,620 206.178
233,900 250,692
138.740 135,573
180,694 193,931

49,547 •-

227,221 ...216,438

1,341,635 1,126,897

9.086.445 8.273:983

9.400.880

3,787.422
144.691

3.932.113

.$ 15.533,667 $ 13:332:993

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3



;fiQWTHyVpSTERN-CQMMUNinSERVI9K

CONSOtlDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019
WITH PRIOR-YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental Income

Developer fee Income
Support
Sponsorstilp
interest Income

ForgNeness of debt

Miscellaneous

.. Irvklnd contributions

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS REI.EA8ED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program eorvlces
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Houslr^ services
Economic development services
Other p^rams

Total program services

Supporting ecdvltlos
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN LIMfTED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR.

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor

RbstTictldris Raatrictloria.

$ 10,672,702
2.486.405
995,360

326,658
70.893
7.153

366,849

120,697
241.499

16,309,138

:87;608;

-?15:396.744^

5.236,463
2,659,830
1,994,872
2,319,665

721,370
.  894.9B6.

13,829,406

1,880,406

15.709,612

(313,066)

(6,481)

16.116

(301,433)

3,787,422

125,833

125.833

(87,606)

38.225

38,225

38,225

144,691

2019

Total

$ 10.672,702
2,485,405

995,360

452,391
70,893
7,153

388,649

120,697
■  .24l;499'

15,434,969

15.m969'^

5,236,483
2,859,830
1,994.872
2,319,865
721,370
694.966

13,829.406

1,880;40e

15,709:812

(274*843)

(6,481)

18.116

(263,208)

3.932.113

1.436.682

2016

Total

$. 11,055,093
1.888,188
601,642
60,000
509,229

106.280
6,959

75,971

100,772
161.852

14,736.992

4.8ji7,201
2.530,152
2.172,388
2.048,214
728,119
945.391

13.271,465

1,749.700 '

15.021.165

(284.173)

(4,583)

fiaei

(286,944)

3.397.772

823:285:

$.. 4,922,671. 182.916. $ 5,105,587 .$ ■3.932.'113

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SQlh-HW=STERN COMMUNITY'SERVICES. INC. AND RELATEDiCOMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED MA^^^^^ AND 2016

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  (263.208) S  (288.044)
Adjustments to recondie changes In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 580,115 467!929
Loss on sale of property 6,481 4,583
(Gain) loss on Investment in limited partnerships (18,116) 188

Forgiveness of debt (388,849) (75.971)
(Increase) decrease In assets:

Accounts receivable (185,904) 265,199

Prepaid expenses 5,509 (3,439)
Interest receivable (4.480)
Due from related parties 44,240 66,149

Security deposits 5,151 (2,623)
Increase (decrease) In nabilllies:

Accounts payable 145,829 (53,220)
Accrued expenses (108.905) (38,863)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (16,792) 9,657

Other current liabilities 3,167 (13.125)
Refundable advances (12,937) (44,414)
Interest payable 49,547 -■

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (152.672) 288.626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) decrease In escrow funds (33.668) 6,848
Proceeds from sale of property 215,000 -

Purchase of properly,. (139.717) (142>91)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 41,716 (138:945)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term debt 40,048 76,143
Repayment of long term debt • „ (160.029) -- (112.612)

NET CASH USED IN RNANCING ACTIVITIES (119.981) (36.469)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ANO.CASH EQUIVALENTS (230.938) 115,212

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,066,895 947,176

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM UMITEO PARTNERSHIP 26,230 24.508

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  882,187 ■$ 1.680:895

Soe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SbUTHV^STERM^OMMUNI^SERVtCE^

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31/2bl9 ANb:26i8

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid duiing tho year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:

Prepaid expenses.
Land end buildings

Fumlluro end fixtures

Casti escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of IlablllUes from newly consolidaled LP:

$  203.408. $ 142:467.

S  (22,212)
(2,373,335)
(168,237)
(297,913)
(16,151)

(12,328)
(894,504)
(96,338)

(164,110)
(1^.467)

$ (2.a77;648). i. {1,176.747).

Accounts payable $ 121,699 $ 10,810

Accrued expenses 20,347 11,199

Due to related parties 85,181 -

Long term debt 1.332,075 304:073

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP $ 1:559:302; S:.- 326.082

Total partners' capita! from newly consolidated LP 5 1,344.77iSi S' 877;i73

Partners' capital previously recorded as investment In related parties 91.906' :(53:B88)

Total transfer of partnora' capital from newly consolidated LP $ 1.436i682i 823:285

See Notes to Consolldatod Financial Statomonts
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SOUTHWESTERN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY;31.:2019-AND 2018

NOTE 1 QRGANI^TION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNtfNG POliCIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporatjon formed as an umbrelia corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, ' and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Sen/ices, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Management Corppratlpii, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SOS Housing Development, inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from
governmental contracts.

iPrlhclples of CorisolldatlQn
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entitles as Southwestem Community
Services, Inc. has both an economic Interest and control of the entitles through a
majority voting Interest In their governing board. All significant Intercompany
items and tr^ansactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated

financial statements.

■  SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing, Inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Development, Inc.

■  Drewsvllie Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsvllle)
■  Jeffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jeffrey)-Sold 2/1/19
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnershlp ̂ Keene

East Side)
> Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)

Corisclidation began 8/16/17
■  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)

Consolidation began 6/30/18
■  Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19



Basis of Accounting
The corisonciate^ fihancial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report information regarding Its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net assets .without, donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed- restrictions and riiay be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of.Directors.

,,Net assets--with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
Imposed b/donors and grantors. "Some donor restrictions are temporary In
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets without'donor
restrictions and with dohor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information In total but not by net asset class. Such Information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such Information ' should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized Infomiatlon was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Orgariization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is
recognized as revenue.

In^Klhd Support
The Organization records various types of In-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received, creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.
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Estimates

The presentation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Gash^and:Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statenient of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
Investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organization has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that is expected to be collected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

■Current^VulnerabHltv'Due toGertaln^Concentratlons
The' Orgahlzaitiori Is. operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules'
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies'. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding, to pay for the related "cost, Including the additional,

..administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

Concentration of Gredlt Risk
The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial Institutions,
which at times may exceed federally Insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it Is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.
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Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures - 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,929, fespectively.

Advertlslna
The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

iRevenuejRecbqriltlon

Arri'ourits teceiye.d frpiti' condltlonai grants and; coiilracts •received for speclfic-
:Purpp,ses;are:-generally.recognlzed as lncome>to;the:extent!th'at''related:expenses
and-,conditjpns:iare 'Incurred, .pr, -mef. Qcndltlenal ̂ grants; received..pridr''to the'
conditions belhgimetfare repoi^edfasyrefuhdableadvances; GPntHbutloris df cash,
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, If a
restriction Is fulfilled In the same period in which the contribution Is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $i,012;604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future
taxable Income and, If not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31. 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2022.
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The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation allowance (212.768) (137.408)

• Deferred tax asset $ $

Drewssrille, Jaffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are Included in the partners'
federal income tax* returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax retums with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an Income tax'at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes."
established the "minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on Its income
tax retums for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
conclud.ed that no additional provision for Income taxes Is necessary In the
Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Ftrianolal Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework In generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value Is a market-based measurement, not an
ehtlty-speclfic measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, Income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions In fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available In
active markets for Identical Investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable Inputs In
situations vyhere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those Instruments.

New Accounting :Pronouncemerit

On August 18;"2016. FASB Issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities {Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandabllity of net asset classification,
deficiencies in Information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of Information provided about expenses and
investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Fuhctibhal Aifbcatioh oflfecpenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are Incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The Indirect cost rate Is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31,2020.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The Organization" has a $250,000 revolving-line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest Is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
the Interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

14



NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

2019 2018

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 145,647 $ 154,832

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to

Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 31,589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in monthly
Installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,
Ashuelot). 20,672 31,143

Non-Interest bearing mortgage payable to" New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 '244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there Is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until"
project is sold or refinanced. The note Is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment; interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
Installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 146,515 162,223

15



2019 2018

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured .
by real estate of the Organization (ID Bank,
Keene Office). 2,212,288- 2,247,266

Non-Interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment Is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note Is secured by real estate of the

Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company. In
annual Interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance Is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and Is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31. 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/CommunltyWay). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and Interest of $2,463 including Interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted In an

Interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Street). 94,733 100,254
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2019 2018

Non-Interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment Is due and beginning In
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the properly is used for low Income
housing through January 2025. The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 125,000 " 150.000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment Is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note Is forgiven each
year providing the property'Is-used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Charlestown Road). 75,000 90,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing In annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance Is
due. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 '794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment Is due and 5% of
the balance Is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The i
note Is secured by real estate of the Organization
(ODBC, Second Chance). 344,536- 363.677

6.99% note payable to a finance company In
monthly Installments for principal and Interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note Is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 1,293 8,741

5.54% note; payable to a finance corripany in
. monthly Installmenis' for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 19,287 ' 24,564
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2019 2018
Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
prihcipal and accrued interest at 1% were deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The note was
secured by land and buildings. The balance
Included cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31, 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
Installments for principal and Interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was secured by
land and buildings (TD Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31. 2019 and this note
was paid In full. - • 41_099

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county In New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-Interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's' Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-Interest bearing note
payable to a county In New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred • until the note matures in December

2028. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900.000

Keene East Side - Non-Interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and ^capital Improvements.
Beginning In 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note Is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185,899 178,172
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2019 2016

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency Improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal

and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 282,720

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 377,110

I  \

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable In monthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 446,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero Interest

mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower determined
by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term.of the mortgage. 237,173
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2019 2018

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthiy instaliments of $370, Inciuding
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
iand and buildings, subject to iow Income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA). 50,436 53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payabie to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payabie at the soie
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan Is due
upon demand with Interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank). ■ . - 150.000 - 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs 9,332,609 8,490,421

Unamortized defen^d financing costs (18.9431 _ -

9,313;686 8,490,421
Less current portion due within one year 227.221 216.436

M^3i983

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31 Amount

2020 $ 227,221
2021 121,051
2022 115,864

2023 115,596
2024 118,605

Thereafter 8.634,272

Total :$ 9.332.609.,
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NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Origanlzation "leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
IVIav31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Amount

$  78,745
21,677

18,318

1,050

720

120

Total $  ̂20.630

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued a iiability for future annual
leave time that its employees had eamed and vested in the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectiveiy.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern "Cornmunlty Services, Inc. Is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SCS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners often limited partnerships formed to
develop low-Income housing projects through the use of Low income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,553,000 at
May31,2019and2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectiveiy. provides collateral on
these loans.
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The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31. 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 7 related: PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, SOS Housing, Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled

.  $313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31. 201'9 and 2018,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entitles totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31, 2019
and 2018.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Sbuthwesterh Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

CItyside Housing Associates, LP
Marlborough Homes, LP
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP
Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP
Westmili Senior Housing, LP
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates, LP
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP
Pilot Health. LLC

2019 ■  2018

$  (9,500) $  (9,492)
(11) 8

(12,503) (12.491)
(1.897) (1.715)

(21) (17)
222,842 222,846

78 90
- (31,190)

- (60,716)
(260) (243)

(18.374)
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SCS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of CItyslde Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner in Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31. 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership Is Included In
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is
included In the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, consists of the following:

2019 2018

Total assets $ 5.745 ^2^782^

Total liabilities -2,454 47,461

(14.679)

•

i^,454
.3.29:1

$ 5.746

$ 426

661

L-

Income $ 426 $; 84,713

Expenses 661 81.478

Net Income (loss) S f2351 $ 3.235
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NOTE 9 RETIREIViENTPLAN

The Organization rhalntalns a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. Ail employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the pian.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

2019 2018

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

Stand Down

GAPS/Warm Fund

Transport
HS Parents Association

EHS

5,973 $

91,908
47,260

6,575
31.200 _

21,327

4,963

118,401

Total net assets with donor restrictions i44i?9r

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt Income In connection with notes payable to Community Development

Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority,
Forgiveness of debt income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD

and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt Income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31. 2018.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. acquired a partnership interest in three iow-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019

Winchester Swanzev Show Brhnk

Date of Transfer 08/16/2017 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  24,508
11,467

164,110

990,842
12.328.

$ 12,856
7,330

■  119,061
1,330,231
.  . 6.436.

$13,374
8,821

178,852
1,211,341
- 15.776

Total assets 1.203.255 1.475.914. 1.428.T64

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

304,073
-.-22.009

666,902
, , 87.108

665,173
140.1-19

Total liabilities 326:082 ,  754.01.0 805:292

Partners' capital 877, i73 721,904 622,872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an Investment in related parties .. f53.8881 31.190 60.716

Partners' capital transferred a 7S3.nfl4 $883:588.
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NOTE 13 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

•  The following represents Southwestern Community Services' financial assets as
of MaySI, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $  882.187 $  1,086,895
Accounts receivable 1,245,826 1,095.486
Due from related party 59.102 -  188,523
Notes receivable 112,000 112,000
Interest receivable 45,547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds ■849:334 517.853

Total financial assets 3.193.996 3:046.304

Less amounts not available to be used
within one year:

Due from related party (59,102) (188,523)
Notes receivable (112,000) (112,000)
Interest receivable (45,547) (45,547)
Reserve funds .  . .f729.486i -  - (444.98bV

Total amounts not available within one year Y946.1351 1791.0501

expenditures over the next twelve months ■  ?.^47-igg1. $ ■2.255.254

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION
Certain arnbunts and-'accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reciasslfled to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT:EVENTS.
•  Subsequent events'are events or transactions that occur after the statement of

financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates Inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that. provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SOUTHWESTERN^feOMlVlUNITY^^E^IC^

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MA^ Si. 20.19;

NOTE 1 BASISjiFPRESENtATiON
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
Information In this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestem Community Services, Inc., It is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes In net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OFSIGNIFICANT-ACCdUNTINGPOLlClES
^Exi)endltures reported "on the "Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following" the cost principles
contained In the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Cbmrh'unity Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minlmis Indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. •

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nbhmonetary'assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

.  Southwestem Community Services, Inc. had no subreclpients for the year ended
May 31, 2019.
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squthwestern:cqmmunity'?^rvices/inc;..and^relatedcom

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERMENT AUDITING STANDARDS.

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene. New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31. 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 2019.

■ IntefharCdntro) pyer Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwesterri Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate'in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.

CompUanceandidther Matters;
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we perfonned tests
of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance .with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with

• those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. .The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this.Repbrt

The-purpose'of;this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Internal control or on compllance. This report Is an integral part of an audit
performed, in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards In' considering the

-Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

November 5, 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVlUNITY SERVICESJNC. AP^Pf^ELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE.

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on CompHanceTor Each MalOf Federal Program
We: have audited .Southwest'em' Gbmrhunlty Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies' compllahce With the types of compliance requiremehts
described In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestern Community Seh/ices, ihc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May
31, 2019. Southwestern Comrnunity Services, inc.'s major federal programs are identified Iri the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management iS: responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of fts federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors'Reeponslbllltv

Our responsibility ls:to express an opinion on compliance for:each of Southwestern Gdmmunity
Serviciss, ihc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Genera!
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Unlbrm Guidance). Those .standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable' assurance about yvhether noncprnpliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a diroct-and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal pfogfam. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.

33



Optriiori'bh'Each MalorFede
In our opinion; Southvyestern Gpmmuntty Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Report on Internal GontroiiOvGr Gbmpiiance
Management of Southwestern Cornmunlty Services. Inc. Is responsible .for establishing and
rnaihtaining effective Internal control over compliance with the lypes'of compliance requirements
referred to above; In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern ■.Gornmunlty Seivices;, Inc.'s Internal .contrp!: bver cbmpjiancei w^^^^ the: types- of
requlfem'ehtS- that'j could have 'a .direct and rhateiiar effect on-each -major federal program to
determfne the'-audilmg procedures that are appfdph in the-cireUmstahb,es.:foT of
expfessing'an-bpirilbri bhVcbmpllanbe for each itiajof federal program arid to! te§t~ arid report on
internal bori,trpl over.cbmplian |n\ac^;|darice wlth the Urilfbrrn Guidance, butmbt forthe^pufpose
of expressing an pblhlpn on the effectiyeness of Iritemai 'contro A'ccbfdirigly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Sbuthwestem IZbriimuhity ^
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency In Internal, coritrpl Over-compliance, exlsts^when the design or operation of a control
oyer-.obrnpllance does hot allow rhariagement or employees, In the normal^course. of perforrriing
ithelf assigried .functions',. Xo prevent; or detect and correct, 'noncompIlance. ..wlth a^type of
compllarice-.re.qulremeht' of'.a federal iprogram;,on a timely ̂ basls.-. .A imaterlal weakness . In Internal
control over'cohipllance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies In Internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material.'noncompllance-with^aitype of
compliance requirement of a federal program will riot be prevented; .or detected and correcjtedr pri
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in In'temal control'over'.compllanceMs,a deflcTe'ncy;. pr a
combination of deficiencies, in Internal control: over'complianoe "with a type of, cbmpllahce
requirement of a federal program that Is less severe thanra;mater1ai weaknesS'ln-Jnterri'ai-cbntfol
over compliance, yet Irnportant enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. '

Our consideration of Jntemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies In Internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies: We did not Identify
any deficiencies In Internal control over compliance that we Consider to be material, weakfie^es.
However, material weaknesses riiay exist that were not Identified. "

The purpose of this report pri.-ihterrial^cohtrblhbyef com^^ solely To descflbethe scope of;
our'testing- of Iriternal bontrpr byer and: the^ rbsults bf testing based on ;the
requirement's of"'the Uniform" Guidance: Accprdlngly, ttils report .lb nbV "suitable foH any other
purpose."

Novembers, 2019
Wblfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN <;QlVIMUNITYSER\/ICfeJNG.A^

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY.Si. 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Soulhwestem Community Services, Inc. were prepared In accordance with
GAAP.

2. No' significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No .instances of noncompljance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported In
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit. •

4. No significant deficiencies In Intemal control over major federal award programs are
reported In. the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal: ContrdI t)ver. Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs fqr.SoiJthwestem
Commuriity Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

. 6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The. programs tested as major progfanis were:, U.S. Department of Health and 'Human
Servlc.es; LowTln'wme HOnie- Enerigy' Assistance, .£[3.5,68, .arid U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000..

9. Southwestem Community Services. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

35



^ AND RELATEb COMPANIES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED;:MAY 31. 2019

Therie-Vi'ere no findings or questioned costs that vvece;.required to be reported In the Schedule
of FrhdlKg^'and Questioned Costs for the yearend^ May 31, 2018.
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1  Southwestern Communit)' Services, Inc Board of Directors - .Composition — 2020 -|

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT Beth Fox Mary Lou Huffling

SECTOR Assistant City Manager/ Pali Mountain Erhergency Food,Shelf
Humaii Resources Director . Aistead Friendly ,Meals

City of Kecnc

Briahria Trombi

Head Start Policy'Council
Parent Representative

PRIVATE Kevirf Watterson, Cliair/Secrctary Anne Beattie

SECTOR Glarke'Gompanies (retired)

)

Newport.Sen'ice OrganiMtion

PUBLIC Jay Kahn. Kerry Belknap Morris, M;Ed.

SECTOR State Senator, District 1.0 Early Childhood-Education
River Valley Comrnimity GoUege

David Edkins Derek Eerland
Walpole,KH Sullivan County Manager



SCS LIHEAP «& ASSURANCE 16

Key Personnel

Name. Job Title Salary % Paid frbiii

this Conlracf

, Ahiounl Paid from

this Contract

John Manning Executive Director, $147,867 0% 0

Terra'Rogers Director of Eher^ &
Employment. Programs

$56,160 50% $28,080



John A. Manning

Summary Over 30 years of experience with non-profit organizations, as both an
.outside auditor and presently Chief Executive Officer of a large
community action agency.

Exi^rience. 2014-Present Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene. NH

Chiief Executive pfficer

Has overall stiategic and operational responsibility for a cdmmuhity. actiori
agency prOviding^services to low and moderate ihCome individuals.
Programs'include. Head Start, Fuel Assistance, and multiple affordable
housing fjrbjects: Bespdhsibllities inClude maintainihg ongbing excellence,
rigorous-prbgrarii evaluation and.consistent quality of fiharice. adriiinistratron,
fundraisihg; communicatloris and systems; Works with the Board of Directors
and management.team;tb implement the objectives of SCS's strategic plan.
Actively engages and.energlze's volunteers, board merfil?ers, event
:committees, partnering qrg'anizations and.funders; Develops and maintains
strong'.relatiOnshjps vvith the Board of Diiwtors and:serve as ex-pffido
member of the' Board. Leads, coaches, develops and retainS.a high-

■"perforrhance management teamVErisures" effective.systems are In place to
measure work performance, .'provide regular feedback to funding sources
and commuri'fty partners.

1990-2014 Southwestern Community Services Inc;
Keene, NH

Chief Financiai'Officer
Oversees ajl fiscal functions Supervi^s a staff of" 7, with an agency
budget of over ■$• 13,000,000: Also oversees agency, property
rnanagement departirient, which manages oyer 300 units of aferdable
housing.

1985-1995 keene State College keene, NH
Adjunct Professor

Taught eyenjng accounting classes for their cpntinuing education
prog ram:

1,978-1,990 . John;A, Manning, Keene, NH
Certified Public Accounten.t
Provid^ public accounting se,ryices to small and medium sized clienfe,
Including ,rnu|tiple r)pn-profit orgariizations. Perfonned certified audits-on
several cliente, including Head Start and other non-profit clients



1975-1978 Kostin and Cb. CPA's West Hartford. Ct.

StafF Accountant

Perfprmed all aspects of pubic acqounting for mediurn sized accounting
firm, Audited large.number of piivateiy heid.and non-profit dients.

Education 1971-1975 University of Mass. Amherst. Ma.

■ B.S. Business Administration'in Accouritirig

Organizations American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
NH Society of Certified Public Accduntarits



Terra Rogers

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Director of Energy and Employment Programs with 10 years of

experience In a non-profit setting.

•  Personnel Relations

•  Strong PC-skills

•  Human Resources-

•  Problem-Solving

MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SERVICE SKILLS

•  Lead and Motivate •

•  Excellent.Communication •

,• Community Outreach •

•  Decision Making •

Interviewing

Database Management

Trairiing and Development

Maintain Confidentiality

EXPERIENCE

11/2006-. CurrentSouthwestern Commuhlty Services [Keene/Claremont, NH]

Director of Energy and Empjpymeht Programs (11/2015- Current)

Oversee all daijy operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,

Senior .Energy Assistance and Assurance 16 as well as the Workforce- Innovation and

Opportunities-Act Program (WlOA)'.

WJOA Empioym'eht Counselor (11/2006-11/2015}

pVovl.de career management services to eligible custorhers with a focus bh' helpihg.them obtain

employment.. Follows stringent guidelines and extensive documentation to help ensure

prograrri is running with federal and state government regulations. Serves as a liaison betvyeen

customers, -instfuctors, school administrators and businesses. Strong understanding of

community resources'to help provide appropriate referrals throughout theoommunity.

Staples [Various locations throughbut VT, ME, NY and NH] 9/1996-11/2006

Operations Manager

Consistently promoted over a 10 year period. Established and maintained.all store operations.

Provided high end customer service which helped to cohtihuously exceed maxirhum sales goals.

Fulfilled a broad range of HR functions, including recruiting, onboarding, evaluations; staff

tfainihg, administering benefits, overseeing disciplinary action and managing store personnel.

'Mariaged staff payroll,'Store schedulirig, company marketing ahd overall.store..presentation.

EDUCATION

Granite State College- Concord, NH

Bachelor of Science (BSj in Behavioral Science (Magnum Cum Laude) Graduated June 2012


